HISTORY,

FEATUR By,

This building constructed in 1665 was used as the residence
of the Agent Viectualler until 1815 and by Chief of
Ordnance Department until 1854

Purchased by the Corporation in 1904 and used as offices,
it wa: evecuated in 1949 in order that siructural repailrs

- gould be carried out.

Uespite the absence of the original entrance the front
elevation is a fine example of the architecture of the
period. Internally little of interest remains, but in
three rooms the originel panelling has Leen retained,
and one fireplace reconstructed. The most important
feature is the Jacobean staircase., Little but the newels
snd balustrade remain, and it would appesr that it was
not originally constructed for the bullding but addpted.
The flights are not of egual length neither are the

- treads the same width throughout. The building has Leen

“Beheduled by the WMinistry of Works Department as a

- building of Historic Value.

REPAIRS

ARD
ALTER ATIONS,

After the use of the building as en office was
discontinued its future use was the subject of several
reports to Coungil, and it was eventually decided to
render it structurally sound and convert to a Public
Library.

A survey of the building showed thai s small proporiionm

of the repasir work would be met by the Var Damage
Commission, but the majority of the damage was due to
general deterioration and the ravages of the death-watch
beetle, This insect which had probsbly been active in the
oak timbers since the building was erecied had considerably
reduced the effective dimension of the maln oak besns,

and hed in some places completely severed the 5" x 4"

oak floor joistse,. ;

it was declded to retain the main floor beame, the average
size of which were 12" x 10", Badly affected timbers
were hacked away and the remainder wes 1literally pickled
with Cuprinol Furniture Beelte Destroyer. In order that
the 1lst floor would take the incressed loasd rolled steel
channels were bolted on elther side of these beams, and
new intermediote Jjolsts were carried on these chennels,
These intermediste Jjoiste were in softwood treated with

with Cuprinol S, DL, Creen preservative,

Repairs to the main roof were carried out without stripping
the tiles and batiens as these were generally sound heving
been rencvaeted in the esrly nineteen thirties. In the north
east corner, however, the roof and one wall was so badly :
deamaged that the whole wa: demolished and rebuilt with new

2" bricks and new roof timbers. On the secomnd floor {
short endsof 5" x 4" angle irons were bolted to the main oek
beams, end the.irons anchored to the main walls with rag
bolts set in concrete. In order to asist in holding the
whole of the front elevation together (this is badly bulged
in some places) & reinforeced concrete lintol was run slong
the entire front of the building immediately under the roof
plate, and this lintol was enchored to the cross besums



in the centre of the building.

The load beering walls which in the main are two bricks
thick were stitched together es necessary and where the
beams carried perticulerly hesvy loeds these vere carried
down to the foundations by steel stanchions., Generally
speaking however, no load besring walls were removed

( the majority of the internal partitioning wes timber
studding) so no heavy steel beams were required and a
moderstely uniform loading was preserved on the footings.
Thies was perticularly important as the ground is

g particularly bad and the foundations in the mein consist
of chalk blocks. The cost of sultably underpinning the
whole building would have made the scheme prohibstive.

The structural work was started on 4th June and
completed by 2lst September,

REPAIRS which in turn were fiked to the two large chlnnq# atackn'\

Internal work consisted mainly of laying new floors and
new wall plastering., As the walls were moet irreguler
and subject to penetrating dampness the method used

was timber battems, with Gypreoc plasterboard and a single
coat of plester, Vhere possible the original wall
panelling was retained; but it was necessery to dlsmantle
it, trest the back with Cuprinol, and re-asscemble.

During this stage of the work the South Eastern
Wlectricity Board were rewiring the whole of the building
for light end pover using screwed conduit throughout,

The direct lesbour staff were installing the hot water
heating system, snd the cables were laid for both
internal and GeP,Us telephones. During the progress

of the work 1t was founu necessary o completely rebuild
the main staircase; using new timber in treads, risers
and cerrisges. Work on the restoration of the ocak beams
started in late November and continued to Christmas.

In some csses theve lovely ocak timbers had been covered
with successive layers of paint to & shickness of §".
This generally impeded the devastation wrought by the
death watech beetle, and with cereful staining & plessing
effect has bDeen obilained,

As fer as possible existing timber wes used in the first
and second fixings, but in all about 5 standards of
soft tiuwber wes used in the restoration and conversion.

The decoration using the old joinery presented a
problem, @8 much was Split, bPadly holed and in sonme
cases out of line. ZIDurning off of old paint took a
consliderable time, and in all some 4,000 hours were
gpent on this and the painting. All walls in the
public areas were painted ian preforsnce to distemper

to give a surface which is not only easy to keep clesn,
but is lasting.

With the exception of the small counter all the existing
shelving wae traneferred from Biggin Hall, but the
majority of furniture on show to the publie including
beth counters is newv and was construeted b, contract.
Face wood is first quality oak, but backing is of "Agba"
and the whole was treated with Cuprinol by the ?
menufecturers as a preceution against attack by the death
wateh beetles



The floor covering of staff erces was carried gut by
llessrs, Flashmen using 3.5 mem. linoleum, s=® in order
to minimise the trensmission of sound from the Lending
Library to rooms below this floor was insulated
using @ Fibreglass quilt under the floor and a 5/16"
ecork floor covering, For uniformity and sound k>
suppression this cork flooring wes used on all flgors
accessible to the publie. .

The work which took twelve manths to complete was
carried ocut with the close and most cordial

co-operation from the Librarian and his Staff, the

Var Damege Commission end the Ancient lionuments
Department of the Ministry of Works.,

Borough Engineer's Yfiice,
Erock House,
Dﬂverq
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